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T E X A S  

April 27,2010 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the 
City Council, and Citizens of the 
City of Big Spring, Texas 

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish a complete set of audited 
financial statements within six months of the close of each fiscal year. This report is published to 
fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30,2009. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. All amounts in this transmittal letter are in 
thousands of dollars, unless otherwise stated. 

Bolinger, Segars, Gilbert & Moss, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an 
unqualified ("clean") opinion on the City of Big Spring's financial statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2008. The independent auditor's report is located at the front of the financial 
section of this report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction 
with it. 

Profile of the City 

The City of Big Spring, Texas, incorporated in 1907, is the county seat and principal city of 
Howard County. The city is located 39 miles northeast of Midland, Texas at the intersection of 
Interstate Highway 20 and U.S Highway 87. The city currently occupies a land area of 18.89 



square miles and serves a population of 25,233. The city is empowered to levy a property tax on 
both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state 
statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed 
appropriate by the city council. 

The city has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1927. Policy-making 
and legislative authority are vested in a city council consisting of the mayor and six other 
members. The city council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting 
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the city's manager, attorney and municipal court 
judge. The city's manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the city 
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the city, and for appointing the heads of the 
various departments. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. All council members are 
elected by district. The mayor is elected at large. 

The city provides a full range of services to its citizens, including police and fire protection; 
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; and recreational and 
cultural activities. Certain water and wastewater services are provided and accounted for through 
a separate enterprise fund. The city is also financially accountable for a legally separate economic 
development corporation, which is reported separately within the city's financial statements. 
Additional information on this legally separate entity can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements (See Note A.l). 

The city council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close of each fiscal year. 
This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Big Spring's financial planning and 
control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., 
police). Department heads may transfer resources within a department with the city manager's 
approval. Transfers between departments need special approval from the city council. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

Major industries located within the government's boundaries or in close proximity include 
manufacturers of plastic bottles and hydraulic components, five prison facilities (four owned by 
the city and one federal institution), a large oil refinery, and several financial institutions and 
insurance companies. Both the state and federal governments are significant economic presences 
thanks to a major psychiatric hospital and a veteran's health care facility that provides 
employment to approximately 1,100 healthcare professionals and staff. 

Volatility in the oil and gas markets. the completion of the Alon Refinery reconstruction after the 
2008 explosion and resulting fire, completion of several wind energy generation projects. 
uncertainty in the nation's economy and lack of winter rains for the cotton crop generate both 
positive and negative impacts on the City's revenue streams for 2009-10. Capital expenses 
related to the 2007 bonds will continue in the current fiscal year, increasing overall capital 
spending. Construction of the sports complex was completed last summer and the downtown 
street reconstruction project is scheduled to be completed in 2010. 



Unemployment rates for the last ten years have varied from a low of 4.4% in 2008 to a high of 
7.5% in 2009. Trends in unemployment rates are one indicator of economic strength and the 
City's rates for the past ten years are presented in Table E-14 in the statistical section. 

Property tax revenue (using the modified accrual basis of accounting) has risen by 80% in the last 
five years, from $3,002 in 2005 to $5,400 in 2009. This increase resulted primarily from 
additional levies for new bonded debt (24.6087@ per $100 valuation) and a new narcotics task 
force (7.9335$ per $100). Additionally, new construction and increases in appraised values 
added an additional 26.7% to total assessed values. Sales tax revenue has increased by 35.7% 
over the same five year period, indicating significant economic growth in the region. The city's 
hotel occupancy tax revenue has seen a major increase from 2005 to 2009, reflecting slightly 
more than a 67.5% increase. This growth can be explained primarily by two factors: newly 
constructed and recently renovated hotels along the interstate and new wind generation 
construction projects. Other revenue sources and expense categories have risen proportionally to 
inflation or to conipensate for new or increased levels of service that are provided to our citizens. 

Long-term Financial Planning 

Unreserved fund balance in the General Fund (55.5% of total General Fund expenditures) is 
higher than the policy guidelines set by the council for budgetary and planning purposes (5% as 
defined by the city's master plan, which was adopted in 1995). Due to diligence in budgeting 
and monitoring, this balance has increased significantly over the past ten years. In 1997, General 
Fund's unreserved, undesignated fund balance represented 1.4% of total expenditures. 

Total long-term debt related to governmental activities which is not due for a year or more, 
comprised of bonds, equipment leases and debt related to an energy conservation project, 
amounts to $16,241. In 2009, the city issued new governmental activity debt in the form of 
capital leases in the amount of $578. Business-type activities saw long-term debt increase by 
$435 in new capital leases. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

The city anticipates opening a new section of the current CityICounty landfill within the next few 
years, with an anticipated cost of approximately $2 million. Additionally, the city has begun the 
planning process for the permitting and opening of a new landfill within the next ten to fifteen 
years. The cost associated with this process, as well as expenses associated with closure and 
post-closure of the current landfill. requires that the city begin accuniulating funds to cover those 
expenses. To that end, revenues derived from recent fee increases in sanitation rates, gate fees 
and commercial tipping fees, as well as annual contributions from Howard County, are being 
placed in a cashlinvestment escrow account that the current council has designated for that 
purpose. At the end of 2009, the city has placed $2,290 into the designated escrow account to 
cover this future liability. 



The City of Big Spring has no material liability for other post-employment benefits. While 
retirees are allowed to remain on the City's health insurance plan, they are required to pay 100% 
of their premiums. Currently there are only two retirees who have elected to participate in this 
benefit. 

Internal Controls 

The City of Big Spring has established an internal control framework designed both to protect the 
City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and provide reasonable. but not absolute, assurance of the 
safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to 
be derived. All internal control evaluations occur within the above frame work. We believe the 
city's internal controls adequately safeguard assets, ensure compliance with laws and regulations 
and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

Major Initiatives 

The Colorado River Municipal Water District (CRMWD), located in Big Spring, provides raw 
water from three lakes and four well fields to three member cities (including Big Spring) and to 
several nonmember cities. CRMWD, in conjunction with its member cities, has completed the 
feasibility phase and has almost finalized the design phase of a reclamation treatment project that 
will treat and reuse effluent water flowing from the City of Big Spring's wastewater treatment 
plant. The costs associated with this multi-million dollar project will be passed through to all 
purchasers of CRMWD's raw water supplies. It is anticipated that the majority of the treated 
effluent will be used by the Alon, USA oil refinery located on Interstate 20 just one mile east of 
Big Spring. This project is being hailed as very cutting-edge and forward-thinking as it will help 
preserve one of the scarcest and most essential natural resources in West Texas: water. 

The most well-known landmark in Big Spring is the historic fifteen story Settles Hotel which has 
been vacant since 1984. In 2006, it was purchased by a former resident who has become 
independently wealthy and it is currently undergoing complete renovations. Upon completion, it 
will have retail space available on the first two or three floors, condominium-style living quarters 
on the top two floors, and fully restored hotel accommodations on the remaining floors. The 
anticipated opening of the Settles Hotel is Spring 201 1. Additionally, the city is in the process of 
reconstructing streets and utility lines in the downtown and surrounding business districts. In 
conjunction with these projects, the city has begun the process of revitalizing its downtown area. 
We are in the process of creating an historic preservation committee that will be able to designate 
districts or landmarks of historic and cultural importance. We have also designated this area as a 
reinvestment zone and have the ability to offer additional tax incentives to entice retailers and 
businesses to locate in the downtown area. 

The City of Big Spring swimming pool was closed in 2008 due to leaks, ADA compliance issues 
and the new requirements mandated by the new Virginia Graeme Baker Act. The cost to 
renovate the existing pool would be between $2.0 and $2.5 million. On March 8, 2010, the City 
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Council approved issuance of certificates of obligation in the amount of $4.2 million to build a 
new family aquatic center at the site of the old swimming pool. The new aquatic center will 
include zero depth entry, interactive water play area, two slides, a lazy river, pavilions, sand play 
areas and concessions and is scheduled to open in the summer of 201 1. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Big Spring for its comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. This was the twelfth 
consecutive year that the city has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, the city had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are 
submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated 
service of the entire staff of the finance and administration departments. We wish to express our 
appreciation to all members of these departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation 
of this report. Credit must also be given to the mayor and city council for their unfailing support 
for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the city's 
finances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

City ~ & a ~ e r  Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City Council 
City of Big Spring, Texas 
Big Spring, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- 
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Big Spring, 
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the management of the City of Big Spring, Texas. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Big Spring 
Economic Development Corporation (the Corporation), component unit of the City, which statements 
reflect total assets and program revenues of $6,365,340 and $68,124, respectively, and represent 100% 
of the aggregate discretely presented component unit's total assets and program revenues at 
September 30, 2009 and for the year then ended. The financial statements of the Corporation were 
audited by other accountants whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as 
it relates to the amounts included for the Corporation, is based solely on the report of the other 
accountants. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the component unit were audited in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Big Spring, Texas, as of September 30, 
2009, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows where applicable, thereof for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 27, 
2010, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 
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The accompanying management's discussion and analysis and the budgetary information identified as 
listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are 
supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods 
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Big Spring, Texas' basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The accompanying information in the introductory and statistical sections as listed in the table of contents 
has not been subjected to the procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Certified Public Accountants 

April 27, 2010 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



City of Big Spring, Texas 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the City of Big Spring, we offer readers of our City's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2009. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the letter of 
transmittal, the independent auditor's report, and the basic financial statements. All amounts, unless 
otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the City of Big Spring exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2009, by $122,723 
(net assets). Of this amount, $9.518 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The City's total net assets increased by $4,039. This increase is the net result of four primary 
factors: capital assets increased by $6.576 as bond proceeds were spent on capital projects, 
restricted assets for debt service increased by $38, the amount restricted for landfill closure and 
postclosure increased by $253 as the City continues to prepare for this future liability, and 
unrestricted net assets decreased by $2.829. 

At September 30, 2009, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$16,695, a decrease of $8,801 from the prior year. This decrease is the net result of two primary 
factors: fund balance reserved for capital projects decreased by $9,642 as bond proceeds were 
expended during the year for scheduled capital projects and unreserved balances increased by 
$822. There is $8,608 available for spending at the government's discretion (unreserved, 
undesignated fund balance) in the major governmental funds and an additional $4,875 in the 
nonmajor governmental funds. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund 
was $8,608, or 56% of total General Fund expenditures. 

Total liabilities for the primary government decreased by $1,357 during fiscal year 2008-09, as a 
result of three primary reasons. Accounts payable decreased by $639 as a result of payments 
made to various contractors related to the 2007 bond projects, current long-term debt decreased by 
$12 1 and noncurrent long-term debt decreased by $1,176. 

Resources available for appropriation in 2009-10 were $436 more than anticipated in the final 
revised budget for the General Fund, due primarily to increases in sales tax revenue of $184 and 
$179 in charges for services. Additionally. expenditures were $212 less than revised budget 
estimates. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements 
include the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These provide information about the 
activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's property and debt obligations 
and other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total econonuc resources in a manner similar to the 
financial reports of a business enterprise. 

- 1  1- 



Fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements 
by providing information about the City's most significant funds. For governmental activities, these 
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what resources remain for future 
spending. They reflect the flow of current financial resources and supply the basis for tax levies and the 
appropriations budget. For proprietary activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of 
the City were sold to departments within the City or to external customers and how the sales revenues 
covered the expenses of the goods or services. 

The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for full 
disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund financial statements. This report also contains 
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Reporting the City as a Whole 

The Shtement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The Statement of Net Assets provides an analysis of the City's overall financial condition and operations. 
The primary purpose of this analysis is to show whether the City is better or worse off as a result of the 
year's activities. The Statement of Net Assets includes all the City's assets and liabilities at the end of the 
year while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by the City's 
operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the basis used by private 
sector companies. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received 
or paid. The City's revenues are separated into two categories: those provided by outside parties who 
share the costs of some programs, such as the Department of Transportation's assistance in safe driving, 
and revenues provided by the taxpayers. All the City's assets are reported whether they serve the current 
year or future years. Liabilities are included regardless of whether they must be paid in the current or 
future years. 

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them. The City's net assets (the 
difference between assets and liabilities) provide one measure of the City's financial health, or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall health of the City, however, you 
should consider other financial factors as well (such as changes in the City's sales tax revenues or its 
property tax base) and non-financial factors (such as the condition of the City's facilities, unemployment 
rates and population growth or decline). 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the following activities are presented, 

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general 
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, and recreation and parks. Property 
taxes, sales taxes, user fees, and licenses and permits finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities - The City accounts for business-type activities in its proprietary funds, 
where user fees and charges are intended to recover all or a significant portion of overall costs. 

Component unit - The City has one component unit which is funded primarily through sales tax 
revenue for the purpose of economic development, specifically the generation and retention of 
business activities and jobs. 



Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City 
as a whole. Laws and contracts require the City to establish certain funds to account for specific 
activities, such as grants received through the Department of Justice. The City's administration 
establishes other funds to help it control and manage resources for particular purposes. The City's two 
kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches. 

Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These 
use modified accrual accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash and 
all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and report balances that are 
available for future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term 
view of the City's general operations and the basic services it provides. We describe the 
differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation schedules following each of the 
fund financial statements. 

Proprietary funds - The City reports the activities for which it charges users (whether outside 
customers or other units of the City) in proprietary funds using the full accrual method, which is 
the same accounting method employed in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and 
short-term financial information. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information. The City of Big Spring adopts annual appropriated budgets for its 
general fund and correctional center fund (major funds). Budgetary comparison schedules have been 
provided for these funds to demonstrate budgetary compliance. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The City of Big 
Spring's assets exceeded liabilities by $122,723 at September 30, 2009. The largest portion of the City's 
net assets (90%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.. land. infrastructure, buildings, and 
equipment) less any related debt used to acquire these assets that is still outstanding. These assets are 
used to provide services to the citizens and are not available for future appropriation. Although the City's 
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot he used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 



Table I 
City of Big Spring, Texas 

NET ASSETS 
(in thousands) 

Governmental Activities Business-Typr Aclivities Totals 
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2M18 

Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Rrcrivahles 
Inlemal Balances 
Due from Other Governmenu* 
Capital Assets 
Ofher Asset, 

Total Assets 

Liahililies: 

Accounts Payable and OlhaCurrent Liabilities 
Current Portion of Long-tern1 Liabilities 
Long-term Liabili~ics 

Total Liabilities 

Nel Assets: 

Invested in Capilal Assets. Net 
Restricled 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

An additional portion of the City's net assets (approximately two percent) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets 
($9.5 19) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Big Spring is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and 
business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

There was an overall increase of $6,576 in investment in capital assets ($659 increase in governmental 
activities and $5,917 increase in business-type activities) as capital improvements related to the 2007 
general obligation bonds and the reconstruction of the airport runway were recorded as construction in 
progress. Unrestricted net assets of governmental activities decreased by $662, due primarily to the 
completion of a pro shop for which loan proceeds had been recorded in a prior year. 

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities resulted in an increase of $288 in the City's net 
assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

Total revenues decreased by $474, which is the net result of increases in charges for services and 
property taxes and decreases in sales tax and investment earnings. 

Expenses were higher than the prior year by $1,666 and reflect an increase in almost every 
category. Increases in capital expenditures related to the bond projects, increases in public safety 
related to the narcotics task force, increases related to operation of the Senior Center and increases 
in salaries and benefits were the primary reasons for the overall increase in expenses. 

-14- 



CHANCFS IN NEI ASSEIS 
(in U l m ~ r k )  

Rewnues: 
Progran~Revenues: 

QIargec for Sewices 
Operating (hnts and Contributions 
CapitalCnntc and Contributions 

Ceneml Revenues 
Propeny Taxs 
Saks T a m  
Cross Receipts T a m  
Cnnts and Contributions Not 

Restricted to Specific Program, 
Unrestricted lnvestmnt Eamingc 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

m m e s :  
Waterand Scwr 
A~rpodlndustrial Park 

Enrrsency Medical Spices 
Ceneml Gvcrnnent 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Sanitation 
Recreation and Parks 
Economc Developmnt 
Other 

Total Fqmses 

Increase In Net Assets 
Net Assets at (ktober 1,2008 
Net Ase t?  a( Septerrher30, XlX 

Covernmnlal Activitics Business-Type Activities Totals 
m m 2007 2(XH 2m 2008 



Revenues by Source 
Governmental Activities 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 

lSales Taxes 
h ~ r o s s  Receipts Taxes 

Business-type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Big Spring's total net assets by 
$3,751 in the current fiscal year. Key elements of this increase are as follows. 

The key revenue source for business-type activities is the charge for service that is passed through 
to the users of the business. Charges for water and sewer service increased in the current fiscal 
year by $281. Charges for services in the airpark fund decreased by $28 and increased in the EMS 
fund by $458 over the prior period. 

The water and sewer fund saw expenses increase by $827, as capital expenses related to treatment 
facilities and distribution lines increased. The AirportIIndustrial Park had a significant increase in 
federal grant funds which resulted in an increase in capital expenses of $5,928 for runway 
improvements and the EMS fund saw a decrease in expenses of $56. 

The majority of the increase in business-type net assets in the current year is attributable to a 
federal grant in the amount of $4,584 for the construction of an 11" concrete primary runway at 
the municipal airport. 

It appears, based on relatively static current year net assets and prior year decreases in net assets, 
that the rates that have been established to cover the cost of operations for business-type activities 
do not fully recover operating and capital replacement costs. The City Council and management 
will need to review our current rate structure to determine if these charges need to be increased or 
if operational efficiencies can be achieved in order to reduce expenses. 



Revenues by Source 
Business-type Activities 

Fiscal Year 2008-09 

.Charges for Services 
mhvestmenl Earnhgs 
IGtanWontrbulions 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

The City of Big Spring used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for appropriation at the end of the fiscal year. 

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$16,695, representing a decrease of $8,801 from the prior year's balance of $25,496. Current year 
expenses related to general obligation bond projects accounted for a decrease of $9,642 in fund balance 
reserved for capital projects. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance that is available for spending at the 
City's discretion amounts to $13,483 (representing an increase of $799 over the prior year) or 80.8% of 
total fund balances. 

The General Fund is the major operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved, undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $8,608, while total fund balance reached 
$8,626. However, it should be noted that $2,290 of the unreserved, undesignated fund balance is in a 
restricted investment account that the current Council has set aside for future liabilities associated with the 
closure and post-closure of the City's landfill. This restriction of fund balance is based on a debt 
covenant with Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) as annually established through our 
financial assurance test. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare 
unreserved fund balance to total expenditures. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance represents almost 
56% of total General Fund expenditures. 



Fund balance in the City's General Fund increased by $849 during fiscal year 2008-09. Key factors in 
this growth are as follows: 

Increases in appraised property values, the ad valorem tax rate and new construction caused 
general property taxes to increase by $242 while charges for services increased by $453. 
Recreation expenses increased by $323 due to the opening of the rebuilt sports complex 
Expenditures related to general government decreased by $185 while expenditures for public 
safety increased by $445. due primarily to increases in salaries and benefits. 

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of year amounted to $63, and those for the 
Airport/Industrial Park Fund amounted to $1,156. These balances represented a decrease of $682 in the 
Water and Sewer Fund and a decrease of $1,301 in the Airport/Industrial Park Fund. The decrease in the 
Water and Sewer Fund is a result of capital asset depreciation occurring at a faster pace than capital 
replacement. The decrease in the Airport/Industrial Park Fund was a result of the City's contribution to 
the reconstruction of the primary runway, which was funded primarily through a federal grant. Other 
factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the 
City's business-type activities. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During the year there was a $128 decrease in appropriations between the original and final amended 
budget. The following details the main components of the decrease, which represents a decrease of less 
than one percent over the original budget: 

Appropriations for public safety increased by $56, due primarily to increased overtime associated 
with understaffing. 
Appropriations increased by $1 I I for the construction of a 6" water distribution line at the sports 
complex. 
The golf course saw a decrease in appropriations of $250, as the majority of the budgeted expense 
related to a new pro shop was moved to the following fiscal year. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City of Big Spring's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of September 30, 2009, amounts to $131,362 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads and 
highways, water and sewer lines, and drainage improvements. The total increase in the City's investment 
in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $14,271 or 12% (a 7% increase for governmental activities 
and an increase of 5% for business-type activities). 



Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Equipment was purchased for General Fund in the amount of $579, which included police sedans, 
crew pickups, a sanitation truck, a dump truck, and mowing equipment. 
Major improvements and renovations were made to both the water and wastewater treatment 
plants, for a total cost of $363. 
Governmental funds construction in progress increased by $8,371 which included work on various 
bond projects: $4,855 street reconstruction and $3,686 sports complex. 
Construction is progress for business-type activities had a net increase of $4,842, comprised of an 
increase of $5,928 for the reconstruction of the primary runway at the McMahon-Wrinkle Airport 
and a decrease (transfer to finished asset) of $1,229 for bond project water line replacement. 
Depreciation is generally occurring at a faster rate than replacements or renovations in both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

Table I11 
City of Big Spring, Texas 

CAPITAL ASSETS AT SEPTEMBER 30,2009 
(Net of Depreciation, in thousands) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities To~als 
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 

Land $ 72,836 $ 72,836 $ 5,595 $ 5,595 $ 78,431 $ 78,431 
Infiastmchlre 150 176 150 176 
Buildings and Systems 7 39 233 27,617 27.1 84 28,356 27,417 
Improvements Other Than 

Buildings 1,606 1,758 1,507 1,465 3.1 13 3,223 
Machinery and Equipment 2,392 2,600 1,047 580 3,439 3.180 
Construction in Progress 1 1,468 3,097 6,407 1,565 17,875 4,662 

Additional information regarding capital asset activity of the City can be found in Note D in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements. 

Long-Term Debt 

The City of Big Spring has anticipated the need for new bonded debt for the past several years. In 
November of 2006, the citizens approved both bond propositions presented to them. In March of 2007, 
the City sold $14,285 General Obligation Bonds and an additional $1,100 Certificates of Obligation. All 
debt service on the above bonds and certificates are being paid from property tax revenue, with the 
exception of $640 of Certificates of Obligation which is funded from increases in user fees in the utility 
system. 



At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Big Spring had total bonded debt outstanding of $17,130. 
The total outstanding debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the government, while a tax levy has 
been established for $14,075 of the total and the remaining $3,055 is business-type activity debt, 
supported by water and sewer system revenues. 

The City of Big Spring's total bonded debt decreased by $1,195 during the current fiscal year. Debt 
which is serviced by tax revenues decreased by $735 and debt serviced by enterprise funds decreased by 
$460. 

'The City of Big Spring carefully plans debt acquisition to fund only capital replacement and new 
construction. This process includes matching the maturity of the debt to the useful lives of the assets to 
be funded, as closely as possible. This allows for the use of debt to compliment operations by allowing 
for matching the cash flows of asset cost to the period deriving the benefit from the asset. 

Table IV 
City of Big Spring, Texas 

OUTSTANDING BONDED DEBT AT SEPTEMBER 30,2009 
(in thousands) 

Govcrnmcntal Act~vilics Business-Type Activities Totals 
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 

Gcneral Obligation Bonds 
Serviced by Tax Revenues $ 14,075 $ 14,810 $ $ $ 14,075 $ 14,810 

General Obligation Bonds 
Serviced by Enterprise Fund 
Revenues 3,055 3,515 3.055 3.5 15 

Additionally, this allows the City to plan for and structure debt payments in such a manner that debt 
service tends to be generally declining across the years creating a known, decreasing demand upon 
resources for debt service and limiting the demand upon resources to a managed level. As a result of the 
development and refinement of this process, the impact of current debt upon present and future operations 
is minimized and annual operations can be based upon a known level of expendable, available resources 
to respond to the immediate needs of the City. 

Additional information regarding long-term debt activity of the City can be found in Note F in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements. 



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when adopting the 2010 budget and 
setting tax rates. One of those factors is the economy. The City's population growth as measured by the 
2000 Census indicated no significant gain in population. Unemployment during 2009 rose significantly to 
7.5% from the 2008 rate of 4.4% and per capita income rose by 5.9%, increasing from $26,692 to 
$28,262. Per capita income in the City of Big Spring is considerably lower than the national and state 
averages. 

On February 18, 2008, the local refinery suffered a major explosion and resulting fire. Owners of the 
refinery, ALON USA, decided immediately to begin the process of rebuilding. This reconstruction 
brought over a thousand migratory workers to the area for a period of approximately twelve months. 
Additionally, several hundred out-of-state workers were in the Big Spring area during 2008 undertaking 
construction of wind turbines for renewable energy production. Many of these workers continued to live 
and work in the area during 2009, generating additional sales tax, motel tax and creating positive impacts 
on the overall economic wellbeing of Big Spring. 

The municipal pool was closed in 2008 due to ADA deficiencies, the Virginia Graeme Baker Act, leaks 
within the main structure and outdated plumbing and mechanical concerns. At the time of closing, the 
City Council began studying options and has recently decided to construct a family aquatic center to 
replace the closed pool. The City expects to issue approximately $4 million in certificates of obligation in 
2010 to construct the new aquatic facility. 

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2010. The City will 
use its revenues to finance programs at consistent levels. Increases in personnel costs and debt service 
requirements will increase budgeted expenditures. The City added one major new program to the 2009 
budget, which will continue to significantly impact the 2010 budget. A drug task force was established 
and funded by an increase in the property tax rate. It is anticipated that cash and assets seized during drug 
enforcement endeavors will reduce the tax rate in future years. The ad valorem tax rate that was set in 
2010 for the task force was 7.9335$ per $100 valuation, which is part of the maintenance and operations 
rate. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
City's finance office, at City of Big Spring, 310 Nolan, Big Spring, Texas 79720-2657. 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-I 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type Component 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles) 
Internal Balances 
Due from Other Governments 
Notes Receivable 
Inventories 
Deferred Charges 
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Eauivalents 

Activities Activities Total Unit 

-~ ~ . . . . 
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation): 

Land 72,835,990 5,595,149 78,431,139 117,430 
Buildings and System 739,566 27,616,751 28,356,317 160,706 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1,604,972 7,506,698 3,111,670 
Machinery and Equipment 2,392,380 1,046,733 3,439,113 3.091 
Infrastructure 150.156 150,156 
Canstruclion in Progress 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable 
Claims and Judgments Payable 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages 
Unearned Revenue 
Customer Deposits 
Unclaimed Property 
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 
Current Porlion of Compensated Absences 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Debt 
ClosurelPostclosure Landfill Obliuation 
Accrued Compensated ~bsence; 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 5 74,732,193 $ 35,567,974 5 110,300,167 5 281.227 
Restricted For: 

Grants 2,894,525 
Debt Service 263,432 263,432 
ClosurelPostclosure Landfill Obligation 2,290,023 2,290,023 
Non-expendable - Cemetery Perpetual Care 351.51 1 351.51 1 

Unrestricted 8,643,521 874.706 9,518,227 3,184.339 

Total Net Assets $ 86,280.680 $ 36,442,680 $ 122,723,360 5 6 , 3 6 0 . 0 9 1  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITYOF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-2 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 
O~eratins Ca~ilal 

Charges for ~ r i n t s  a'd Grants and Governmentai Business-Type Component 
Expenses Services Conttibutions Contributions Activtt~es Activities Total Unit 

PRIMARY GOVERNMEN7 
Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Sanotalion 
Community Service 
Recreat~on and PaRs 
Cemelery 
Emnomic Development 
Interest On Lang-Term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities 
Water and Sewer 
AirporVlndustrial Park 
Emergency Medical Services 

Total Business-Type Activ~t~es 

Total Primary Government 

COMPONENT UNIT: 
Economic Development Corporation 

General Revenues: 
Pmperty Taxes 
Sales Taxes 
Gmss Receipts Taxes 
Motel Occupancy Taxes 
Grants and Contributions N d  Restricted 

to Specac Pmgrams 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Olher 

Transfers 
Total General Revenue and Transfern 
Chan~e in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beg~nning 85,992,851 $ 

Net Assets - Endlng $ 86.280.680 

The acmmpanylng notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

BALANCE SHEET -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT A-3 

Capital Capital 
Projects Projects Other Tdal 

General 2007 GO.  2007 G.O. Governmental Governmental 
Fund Streets Sports Complex Funds Funds 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,684,159 $ a $ 4,517,310 $ 9,201,469 
Receivables [Net of Allowances for Unwllectibles) 890,096 816 147.546 1,038,458 
Due from Other Funds 1,337,944 274,585 1,612,529 
Intergovernmental Receivables 810,961 293,813 1,104.774 
Prepaid Items 17,894 1,813 19.707 
Advances to Other Funds 1,198,515 1,198,515 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,290,023 3,049,571 11,904 5,351,498 

Total Assets $10.031,077 $ 2 0 5 0 , 3 8 7  $ $ 6,433,582 $ 19,526,950 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable $ 465,262 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages 257,407 
Due to Other Funds 40,480 
Deferred Revenue 133,829 
Customer Deposlb 
Advances from Other Funds 508.219 

Total Liabilities $ 1,405,197 

FUND BALANCES: 
Reserved Fund Balances: 

Reserved far Debt Service $ 
Reserved for Prepaid Items 17.894 
Reserved for Cemetery Care (Non-expendable) 
Reserved for Capital Projects 

Unreserved 8,607,986 
Unreserved. Reported in Nonmajor: 

Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Project Funds 

Total Fund Balances $ 8,625,880 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 10,031,077 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-4 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Total Fund Balances -Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets ("SNA) are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds 

Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred 
in the funds. 

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in 
the SNA. 

Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the 
funds. 

Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the 
funds. 

Payables for notes payable which are not due in the current period are not reported in the 
funds. 

Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the 
funds. 

Bond issue costs are recorded as an asset in the SNA and amortized over the term of the 
bond issued in the statement of activities. 

Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not 
reported in the funds. 

Other long-term liabilities which are not due and payable in the current period are not 
reported in the funds. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities - Statement of Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-5 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, ZOOS 

Caoital 
Capital 
Projects 

2007 G O .  
Streets 

~rd jec ts  
2007 G.O. Othel Total 

Governmental 
Funds 

General 
Fund 

Sports Governmental 
Complex Funds 

Revenue: 
Taxes: 

General Propew Taxes 
General Sales Taxes 
Gross Receipts Business Taxes 
Motel Occupancy Taxes 

License and Permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fines 
Recreation 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous 
Contributions and Donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Sanitation 
Community Service 
Recreation and Parks 
Economic Development 
Cemetery 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Fiscal Agent's Fees 1.250 

Total Expenditures 5 15,507.563 5 4,854,518 1 3,686,525 5 4,773.371 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (486,307) $ (4,795,163) $ (3,660,286) $ (221,5321 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In $ 1,068,708 $ 16,010 $ 31.169 $ 170,514 
Transfers Out (312.0071 (1.033.747) (156.4661 . .  . . . . .  
Capital Leases 576.525 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 1.335.226 $ (1.015.737) $ 31,169 $ 12.026 

Net Change in Fund Balances 646.919 (5,810,900) (3,629,097) (209.506) 

Fund Balances - Beginning 7,776,961 8,385,562 3,633.983 5,699.121 

Fund Balances -Ending $ 6,625,660 $ 2,574,662 $ 4.666 $5,489,615 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-6 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities ("SOA) are 
different because: 

Capital assets are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the 
funds. 

The loss on disposition of capital assets in not reported in the funds. 

Proceeds of capital leases do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current 
resources in the funds. 

Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these 
amounts this year. 

Expenses not requiring the use of current financial resources are not reported as 
expenditures in the funds. 

Bond issue costs are recorded as expenditures in governmental funds but amortized over 
the term of the bonds issued in the SOA. 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the 
SOA. 

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in 
the SOA. 

Repayment of notes payable principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense 
in the SOA. 

Decrease in accured interest from beginning of period to end of period, 

The net revenue of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities 

Compensated absences are reported as the amount earnedin the SOA but as the amount 
paid in the funds. 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities - Statement of Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF  BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT A-7 
STATEMENTOF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Enterprise Funds 
Water Airpod Emergency 

and Sewer Ind~striai Medical 
Total 

Enterprise 
Funds 

Internal 
Service 
Funds Fund Park Services 

ASSETS: 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Eouivalents 
Rece rab es (he1 o+ Al oaances tor Uncol ect bles) 
intergorernmenla Rece vanes 
Due from Olner F ~ n o s  
Inventories 
Prepaid Items 
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs 

Total Current Assels 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 

Land 
Buildings and System 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinew and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities 

Acmunts Payable 
Claims and Judgments Payable 
AmNed Wages 
Retainage Payable 
Due lo Olher Funds 
Customer Deposits 
Unclaimed Property 
Amued Interest Payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Notes Payable - Current 
Revenue Bonds Payable 
Capital Leases Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
ReMnue Bonds Payable 
Notes Payable 
Capital Leases Payable 
Amrued Compensated Absences 
Advances from Other Funds 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS: 

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 8 10,870,698 S 24,473,335 S 223.941 8 35,567,974 S 4.707 
Unrestricted 63.048 1,155,604 (343,946) 874.706 1,508,587 

Total Net Assets S 10.933.746 $ 25,828,939 S(120.005) 836.442,580 8 1 . 5 1 1 z  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

EXHIBIT A-8 

Enterprise Funds 
Water AirporU Emergency Total Internal 

and Sewer Industrial Medical Enterprise S e ~ i c e  
Fund Park Services Funds ~ u n d s  

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water Sales $ 6,646,240 $ $ $ 6,646,240 $ 
Sewer Charges 2,606,759 2,606.759 
Emergency Medical Services 1.808.569 1,808,569 
Commercial Rentals and Fees 806.400 806.400 ~~ ~~~ ~~~ . 
Billings to Departments and Employees 3,303,473 
Other Services 321,379 321.379 

Total Operating Revenues $ 9,574.378 $ 806,400 $ 1.808.569 $ 12,189,347 $ 3,303,473 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 
Interest Expense and Paying Agent Fees 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

lnwme (LOSS) Before Transfers 

Transfers in (Out) 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets -Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A 4  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

water 
and Sewer 

Fund 

Enterprise Funds 
Airpod Emergency 
indus1"i Medical 

Park Services 

Internal 
Service 
Funds Totals 

Caoh Fiowr hom Operating Activiter: 
Carh Received fmm Curitomem 
Cash Receipts fmm interfund Services Pmvided 
Carh Pavmenu b Emdoveea for S e ~ i c e r  . . 
Carh Pavments to Other Suooi~err for Goods and Se~ lceo  

~ , ,  
Net Caph Pmvcded by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Carh Fiowr fmm Non-Capital Financing Activities: 
Carh Received fmm intergovernmental Grants 
Advances (lo) fmm Other Funds 
Transfers from (to) Other Funds 

Net Carh Pmvided by Non-Capital Financing Aaivilies 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Aaivibes: 
Principal and Interest Paid 
Acquisition or Construction d Capitai Arrets 
Pmceedsfmm Sale of Capitai h r e k  

Net Carh Used in Capitai and Related Financing Actlvitier 

Carh Fiows fmm investing Acliiitier: 
interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Pmvided by i n ~ r t i n g  Activities 

Decrease n Caw .no Cam Eq. ua en- 
Carn ana Caan Eq. vaenls - Beg nn ng d Vear 
Casn an0 Carn Eq- vaenu - Eno d Year 

Remnciliatbn of Operating income to Net Caoh 
Pmvided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 

Operating income (Loor) 
Adjustmentsto Reconcile Operating income to Net Cash 

Pmvided by Operating Activities 
Depreciatbn 
Other 

Change in hoeto and Liabliter: 
Decrease (increase) in Receivables 
Decrease (Increase) in intarfund Receivable 
Decrease (increase) in inventones 
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenrer 
increase (Decrease) in Acmunts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in inmrfund Payabier 
Decreaoe in Customer DepoPiIP 
increase in Defensd Revenue 
increase ( O m a r e )  in Accrued Expenses 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Pmvided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Schedule of Noncash Capitai and Related Financing Activities: 
Capitai Assets Acquired Through Capitai Lease 

Purchaoes 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statamen1 
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A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The combined financial statements of City of Big Spring (the City) have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

1. Reporting City 

The City's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The City 
evaluated whether any other city should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for 
including organizations as component units within the City's reporting city, as set forth in GASB 
Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting City," include whether: 

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name) 
- the City holds the corporate powers of the organization - the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
- the City is able to impose its will on the organization 
- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefiffburden on the City 
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City 

Based upon the above criteria, one component unit (Big Spring Economic Development 
Corporation) is included within the reporting City. The City is financially accountable for the 
Corporation. The City established the sales tax that is the principal source of revenue for the 
Corporation. The City Council appoints the Board of Directors and approves the annual budget. 
This component unit has been discretely presented in the accompanying financial statements. 
Complete financial statements for the component unit can be obtained from their office at 215 
West 3rd Street, Big Spring, Texas. 

Additionally, the City is not a component unit of any other reporting city as defined by the GASB 
Statement. 

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting 

a. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities 
include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations been made to minimize 
the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the 
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are 
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. 
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City 
does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 
(a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's 
funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a 
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and 
reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating 
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions 
or ancillary activities. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund: This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the City except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Capital Projects Fund - 2007 G.O. Streets: This fund accounts for financial resources and 
expenditures applied to the reconstruction of streets. 

Capital Projects Fund - 2007 G.O. Sports Complex: This fund accounts for financial 
resources and expenditures applied to the construction of a sports complex. 

The City reports the following non-major funds: 

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
(other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Service Funds - are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the 
payment of, general long-term obligation principal and interest (other than debt service 
payments made by proprietary funds). 

Capital Projects Funds - are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital improvements (other than those recorded in the 
proprietary funds). 
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The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund: This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with 
providing water and sewer service to the citizens of the City. 

AirporVlndustrial Park Fund: This fund is used to account for the Airport and Industrial Park. 
Funding for these activities is provided by charges to renters of facilities. 

In addition, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related 
to services provided to parties inside the City. These funds facilitate distribution of support 
costs to the users of support services on a cost-reimbursement basis. Because the principal 
users of the internal services are the City's governmental activities, this fund type is included 
in the "Governmental Activities" column of the government-wide financial statements. 

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, 
in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under 
this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all 
revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected 
within 60 days after year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property 
taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the 
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when 
received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 
Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which 
are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset 
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long- 
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted 
resources may be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources. 
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Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds 
and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting." all proprietary funds 
will continue to follow Financial Accounting standards Board (FASB) standards issued on or 
before November 30. 1989. However, from that date forward, enterprise funds will have the 
option of either 1) choosing not to apply future FASB standards (including amendments of 
earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new FASB pronouncements unless they 
conflict with GASB guidance. The City has chosen not to apply future FASB standards. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds, of the water and sewer, 
airportlindustrial park and EMS funds, and of the government's internal service funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue 
the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost 
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues 
and expenses. 

3. Financial Statement Amounts 

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be 
cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

b. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 
for all real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax 
Code. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 
1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien 
attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately 
imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or past due 
and receivable within the current period. 

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon 
historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are 
periodically reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property 
taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature. 

c. lnventories and Prepaid Items 

lnventories on the balance sheet are stated at first in first out method. Inventory items are 
recorded as expenditures when they are consumed. Certain payments to vendors reflect 
costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 
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d. Capital Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is 
used. 

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Asset Classes 

Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Vehicles 
Office Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
Furniture and Fixtures 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

e. Receivable Balances 

Receivables as of yearend for the City's individual major funds and non-major, internal 
service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for 
uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Water AirporV Emergency 
Governmental and Industrial Medical 

Receivables: 
Sanitation 
Taxes 
Municipal Court 
Accounts 

Gross Receivables 

Funds Sewer Park Services Total 

Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (1,551,567) (76,566) (13,889) (1,248,276) (2,890,2981 

Net Total Receivables $ 1,038,458 5 1.023.969 $ 60.386 $ 642,223 % 2,765,036 

Intergovernmental receivables are classified separately in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of 
year end. 
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f. lnterfund Activity 

lnterfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers between 
funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are 
subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to beat market or near 
market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements 
occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its 
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 
Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the 
government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are 
netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement 
of net assets. 

g. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

B. Compliance and Accountability 

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds 

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with 
remarks which address such deficits: 

Deficit 
Fund Name Amount Remarks 
Special Revenue 

Cemetery $ 272,011 This fund incurred additional capital costs in 
the prior year that will be recaptured. 

Golf Course Improvement $ 87,981 This fund incurred additional capital costs in 
the prior year that will be recaptured. 

Employees College Education $ 13,731 This fund incurred additional capital costs in 
the prior year that will be recaptured. 

Senior Center $ 4,513 This fund incurred additional costs that will 
be recaptured. 
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C. Deposits and Investments 

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository 
contract. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank 
approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect District funds on a day-to-day 
basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the 
extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
insurance. 

1. Cash Deposits: 

At September 30, 2009, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $1,956,445 with 
$313,013 in escrow for financing, $38,000 in TML for loss deposit, and $8,525 for cash on 
hand. The City's cash deposits at year end were $1,596,906 with a bank balance of 
$1,690,053. The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2009, and during the year then 
ended were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's 
agent bank in the City's name. 

2. Investments: 

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256. The Public Funds lnvestment Act, 
to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the 
following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable 
investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable 
stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity 
allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and 
capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. 

The Public Funds lnvestment Act (Act) requires an annual audit of investment practices. 
Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the basic financial 
statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and 
establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the Act. 
Additionally, investment practices of the District were in accordance with local policies. 

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, 
with certain restrictions, 1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the State of 
Texas, 2) certificates of deposit, 3) certain municipal securities. 4) securities lending program, 
5) repurchase agreements, 6) bankers acceptances, 7) mutual funds, 8) investment pools, 9) 
guaranteed investment contracts, and 10) commercial paper. 

The City's investments at September 30, 2009 are shown below 

Investment or Investment Type Maturity Rat ins Fair Value Percentage 

Tex-Pool Investment Pool 30 Days Average AAAm $ 13,553,365 100% 

TexStar 17 Days Average AAAm 3,009,957 100% 
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3. Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks 

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the 
following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related 
disclosures: 

a. Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment will not fulfill its obligations. State law and City policy limit investments in 
local government investment pools to those rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2009, 
the City's investments in TexStar and TexPool were both rated AAAm by Standard 
and Poor's. 

b. Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not 
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized 
with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the 
City's name. The City's demand deposits at year end are entirely covered by FDIC 
insurance and pledged collateral held in the City's name by the City's agent. 

c. Concentration of Credit Risk -This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude 
of a government's investment in a single issuer. Although the City's policy states that 
portfolio diversification is required, it does not specify diversification goals or limits. All 
of the City's investments were distributed between two local government investment 
pools at year end. 

d. Interest Rate Risk - As a means of minimizing risk of loss due to interest rate 
fluctuations, the City's investment policy requires that the portfolio remain sufficiently 
liquid to enable the City of meet operating requirements that might be reasonably 
anticipated. For short term liquidity requirements, the City utilizes two local 
government investment pools. TexPool is managed by Federated Investors for the 
State of Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (TexPool). TexPool operates on a $1 
net asset value basis and allows same day or next day redemptions and deposits. As 
of September 30, 2009, TexPool's portfolio maintained a weighted average maturity of 
approximately 45 days. The other local government invest pool utilized by the City is 
Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexStar). This pool is managed by JP 
Morgan Chase Bank and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. As of September 
30. 2009, TexStar's portfolio maintained a weighted average maturity of approximately 
34 days. 

e. Foreign Currency Risk - This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an 
investment from changes in exchange rates. While the City's policy does not address 
this risk, the City has no foreign currency risk as year end. 
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Investment Accounting Policy 

The City's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating 
interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest- 
earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an 
investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by 
other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a 
legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to 
investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term 
"nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate 
changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning 
investment contracts. 

Leqal Investments - Under current Texas law and in accordance with City policy, the City is 
authorized to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its instrumentalities, (2) direct 
obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) other obligations, the principal and interest 
of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the United States or 
its instrumentalities, (4) certificates of deposit that are guaranteed or insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or are secured as to principal by obligations described in the 
preceding clauses or in any other manner and amount provided by law for City deposits, (5) fully 
collateralized repurchase agreements that have a defined termination date, are fully secured by 
obligations described in clause (I),  and are placed through primary government securities dealer 
or a bank domiciled in the State of Texas, (6) commercial paper that is rated at least A-I or P-I or 
the equivalent by either (a) two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or (b) one nationally 
recognized credit rating agency if the paper is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit 
issued by a United States of state bank, (7) no-load money market mutual funds registered with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission that have a dollar weighted average portfolio maturity 
of 90 days or less, and include in their investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net 
asset value of $1 for each share. The City may invest in such obligations directly or through 
government investment pools that invest solely in such obligations. 
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D. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009, were as follows: 

Beginning Transfers Transfers1 Ending 
Balances Increases In Decreases Balances 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Land 
ConStruCtlOn In Pmgress 3 096.840 8.689.478 318,167 11.468.151 

Tdal Capltal Asseb Not Belng Depreciated $ 75932830 5 8,689,478 5 0 5 318,167 5 84,304,141 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and Systems 
lmprov&ents other Than Buildings 3,199,792 133.630 3,333,622 
Machinery and Equipment 9,529,118 732,303 491,388 9,770,033 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated $ 45,317,084 $ 1,103.495 5 318.167 5 491,388 $ 46.247.358 

Less Accumulated Deprecation for: 
Infrastructure 5 5,535,609 16 25,697 $ 5 $ 5.561.306 
Buildings and Systems 26,643,145 49.530 26,692,675 
lmpmvements Other Than Buildings 1.441.897 286,753 1,728.650 
Machinery and Equipment 6,929,000 929,061 480,408 7,377.653 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 5 40,549,651 $ 1,291,041 $ 0 $ 480.408 $ 41,360,284 
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net $ 4.767.433 $ (187,546) $ 318,167 $ 10,980 $ 4,087,074 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets. Net $ 80,700,263 $ 8,501.932 $ 318,167 $ 329,147 5 89,191,215 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depredated 

Land 

Beginnlng Trsnsfes Transfed Ending 
Balances Increases In Decreases Balances 

Construclion in Progress 1,564,863 6,282.207 1,439,883 6.407.187 
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 5 7,180,012 $ 6,282,207 $ 0 $ 1,439,883 $ 12,002,336 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Buildings and Systems 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

Tolal Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Less Accumulated Deprecation for: 
Buildings and Systems 16 40,543.548 $ 2,005,897 $ $ 1 42,549,445 
lm~mvements Other Than Buildintls 22.901.170 177.150 23.078.320 . . . . 
Machinery and Equipmenl 2.098.086 150,787 80,435 217.994 2,111,314 

Tolal Accumulated Depreciation $ 65,542,804 $ 2,333,834 5 80,435 5 217,994 $ 67,739,079 
Totel Capital Asretr Being Depreciated, Net $ 29,229,533 $ (439.1 19) $ 1,379,766 $ 0 $ 30,170.182 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net 5 36,389,545 $ 5.843.088 $ 1,379,768 $ 1,439.883 $ 42,172,518 

Depreciation Expense $ 2,333,834 
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Depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Sanitation 
Community Service 
Recreation and Parks 
Cemetery 
Economic Development 

Depreciation Charged to lnternal Service Funds 

Total Depreciation Charged to Governmental Activities 

E. Interfund Balances and Activity 

1. Due To and From Other Funds 

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2009, consisted of the following: 

Due To Fund 

General Fund 
General Fund 
Correctional Center 
Cemetery 
Capital Projects 
Capital Projects 
Capital Projects 
lnternal Service Funds 
Water and Sewer Fund 
General Fund 

Due From Fund 

Other Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds 
General Fund 
Permanent Fund 
Other Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds 
EMS Fund 
Other Governmental Funds 
lnternal Service Funds 
lnternal Service Funds 

Amount 

$ 383,092 
945,000 
450,000 

573 
43,690 
198,664 
31,658 
3,445 

50 
9,852 

$ 2,066,024 

Purpose 

Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 
Short-Term Loans 

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year. 

Advances To Fund Advances From Fund Amount Purpose 

General Fund Capital Projects $ 58,219 Loans 
EMS Capital Projects 140,384 Loans 
Water and Sewer Fund Capital Projects 549,911 Loans 

$ 748,514 

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within five years. 
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2. Transfers To and From Other Funds 

Transfers to and from other funds at September 30, 2009, consisted of the following: 

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason 

General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 143,709 Supplement Other Funds Sources 
Motel Tax Fund General Fund 96,494 Administrative Fees 
Proprietary Funds General Fund 653,917 Administrative Fees 
Permanent Fund Cemetery Fund 3,247 Supplement Other Funds Sources 
Capital Projects Cemetery Fund 16,450 Supplement Other Funds Sources 
Proprietary Funds Governmental Funds 146,000 Supplement Other Funds Sources 
Capital Projects Proprietary Funds 1,015,736 Supplement Other Funds Sources 

F. Long-Term Obligations 

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity 

Long-term obligations include debt, landfill obligation, and accrued compensated absences, 
Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
General Obligation Bonds 
Certificate of Obligation Bonds 
Capital Leases 
Economic Conservation 
Compensated Absences 
Clo~urelPo~tclo~ure Landfill 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
General Obligation Bonds 
Certificate of Obligation Bonds 
Capital Leases 
Compensated Absences 
Economic Conservation 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

$ 14,355,000 $ $ 720,000 
455,000 15,000 

1.71 1.580 592.657 667.71 1 
1,878.891 11 1,659 
1,659.893 54.570 50.557 
1,736,958 388.552 

$ 21,797,322 $ 1,035,779 $ 1,564.927 

$ 2,885,000 $ $ 435,000 
630.000 25.000 
295.732 435,291 162.473 
478.886 18,307 43.885 

3,169,341 188.347 

$ 7,458,959 $ 453.598 $ 854,705 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 13,635,000 
440,000 

1,636,526 
1.767.232 
1,663,906 
2,125.510 

$ 21,268.174 

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year 

$ 520.000 
15,000 

582,207 
116,337 
85,000 

$ 1,318.544 

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows: 

Liability Activity Type Fund 

Compensated Absences Governmental General 
Compensated Absences Business-Type Proprietary 



-43- 
CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Debt Service Requirements 

Debt service requirements on general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation bonds at 
September 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Year Ending September 30, 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
201 4-201 8 
201 9-2023 
2024-2027 

Totals 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Dale of Issue Original Issue Interest Rates Maturity Date Outstanding 

2002 Refunding Series 6/1/2002 $ 1,600,000 3.0% - 4.5% 211 512009 5 0 
2007 G.O. Bonds 2/1/2007 14,285.000 4.0% - 5.0% 211 512027 13.635.000 
2007 C.O. Bonds 2/1/2007 460.000 4.0% - 4.375% 211 512027 440.000 

5 16,345,000 $ 14,075,000 

Year Ending September 30, 
201 0 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014-201 8 
201 9-2023 
2024-2027 

Totals 

Business-Type Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Date of Issue Original Issue Interest Rates Maturity Date Outstanding 

2002 Refunding Series 6/1/2002 $ 5,190,000 3.0% - 4.5% 2/15/2014 5 2,450,000 
2007 C.O. Bonds 2/1R007 640,000 4.0% - 4.375% 211 512027 605.000 

$ 5,830,000 $ 3.055.000 
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Economic Conservation debt requirements at September 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Year Ending September 30, 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
201 5-201 9 
2020-2021 

Totals 

Year Ending September 30, 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014 
201 5-201 9 
2020-2021 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Business-Type Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Totals $ 2,980,994 $ 872,712 $ 3,853,706 

The effective interest rate on the Economic Conservation debt is 4.1 12% 
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3. Capital Leases 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Machinery and Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Totals 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

$ 5,710,574 $ 2,028,309 
(3,594,213) (1,383,235) 

$ 2,116,361 $ 645,074 

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for minimum 
future lease payments as of September 30, 2009, as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Year Ending September 30, 

2014 
Total Minimum Rentals 

The effective interest rate on capital leases is 2.720% to 3.797%. 

Business-Type Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

Year Ending September 30, 

2014 
Total Minimum Rentals 

The effective interest rate on capital leases is 2.720% to 3.797% 
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4. Continuing Disclosure 

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and 
Material Event Notices to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal 
Advisory Council. This information is required under SEC Rule 15~2-12 to enable investors 
to analyze the financial condition and operations of the City. 

G. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 
2009, the City obtained general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically 
justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the 
Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool 
operating as a common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual 
premium to TML for its above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML 
provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through 
commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category of 
coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for 
other risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the 
past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any 
of the past three fiscal years. 

H. Pension Plan 

1. Plan Description 

The City's pension plan ("Plan") is a non-traditional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan 
which provides retirement, disability and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries 
through its affiliation with Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple- 
employer public employee retirement system. TMRS operates under the authority of Texas 
Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle G. The Texas Legislature has the authority to establish or 
amend benefit provisions and the governing body of the City adopts the plan provisions 
within the options and constraints established by the legislature. TMRS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for TMRS. That report may be obtained by writing to Texas Municipal Retirement 
System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or calling (800) 924-8677. Additional non- 
authoritative information is available at the TMRS web site, h t t p : / ~ . t m r s . o r g .  

2. Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute seven percent of their annual covered salary. The 
City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 11.93% of 
annual covered payroll. The City's contributions to the TMRS for the years ending 
September 30, 2009. 2008, and 2007. were $1,040,937, $872,238, and $706,760, 
respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for each year. 
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3. Annual Pension Cost 

The City's annual pension cost of $1,040,937 for the Plan was equal to the City's required 
and actual contributions. Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually 
determines the City's contribution rate. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate 
and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level percent of 
payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing 
monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of 
an employee's retirement date, not at the time the employee's contributions are made. The 
normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to 
satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time hislher retirement becomes 
effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial 
liability (asset) over the remainder of the Plan's 29-year amortization period. When the City 
periodically adopts updated service credits and increases in annuities in effect, the increased 
unfunded actuarial liability is to be amortized over a new 29-year period. Currently, the 
unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over the 29-year period which began January 
1997. The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining the City's 
contribution rate. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance to budget for 
it, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and 
the calendar year when the rate goes into effect (i.e., December 31, 2008, valuation is 
effective for rates beginning January 2010). 

Since the TMRS does not value the assets of individual cities, the actuarial assumptions 
used to set the required contribution rate of the City are based on TMRS as a whole. For the 
December 31, 2008. valuation date, a 7.5 percent investment rate of return, 3 percent 
inflation rate, and 2.1 percent cost of living adjustment was assumed. No assumptions were 
made for projected salary increases. 

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 26,482,664 
Actuarial value of assets (AVA) 17,946,597 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 8,536,067 
GASB #27 Funded ratio 67.8% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 7,813,766 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 109.2% 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that 
shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

5. Trend Information for the Plan 

Percentage Net 
Annual Pension of APC Pension 

Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

September 30.2007 $ 706,760 100% $ 0 
September 30,2008 872,238 100% 0 
September 30, 2009 1,040,937 100% 0 

6. Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund 

Firemen of the City are covered by a defined contribution pension plan, which is administered 
by a seven-member board. This board consists of the Mayor or his designee, the Chief 
Financial Officer, three firemen and two outside citizens. Texas Local Fire Fighters' 
Retirement Act (TLFFRA) requires that the Mayor, or his designee, and the Chief Financial 
Officer be permanent members of the Board. In addition, three firemen trustees are elected 
by the firemen. These five members are then charged with the responsibility of appointing 
the two final board members, who must be local citizens. The City now provides a defined 
contribution to the fund of 12% of the firemen's salary and the firemen contribute 12%. Upon 
reaching the age of 50 with 20 years of service, the fireman is eligible for full retirement 
benefits. Vesting begins in the plan after 10 years of service, when the fireman is eligible for 
a deferred benefit (commencing at the end of the month in which his normal retirement date 
would have occurred). City contributions and interest forfeited by firemen who leave 
employment before full vesting remain in the plan. 

The City's total payroll for firemen (all covered under the plan) for the year ended September 
30, 2009, was $3,032,188. Both the City and the firemen made the required contribution of 
$363,862 and $363,862 representing 12% and 12% of covered payroll, respectively. 



-49- 
CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I. Self-Insurance 

Changes in the claims liability amounts for the self-insurance Internal Service Funds were as 
follows: 

Current Total 
Liability Year Claims Liability Internal 

Balance at and Changes Claim Balance at Sewice 

Year Ending 09-30-08 
10-01 in Estimates Payments 9-30 Funds 

Health Insurance Claims $ 59,922 $ 1,335,474 $ 1,258.255 $ 137,141 
Workers' Compensation Claims 220,247 (4,033) 114,901 101,313 $ 238,454 
Year Ending 09-30-09 
Health Insurance Claims $ 137.141 $ 839,486 $ 900,704 $ 75.923 
Workers' Compensation Claims 101.313 145,741 148,757 98.297 $ 174,220 

Health lnsurance 

Effective October 1, 2001, the City changed from a fully-insured to a self-insured health 
insurance plan. The City's health insurance plan is administered by a third-party administrator, 
Employee Benefits Administrators (EBA). EBA reviews and processes all health insurance 
claims. The City has acquired stop-loss coverage, which limits the City's possible liability 
exposure to $50,000 per claim. The City informally budgets for current claims based on actuarial 
and historical data. The City incurred $1,641,348 in health insurance expense and 
administrative and other charges for the year ended September 30, 2009. Estimated liability on 
claims that have been incurred but not reported are accrued at year end. Estimated liability for 
health insurance claims is $75,923 at September 30, 2009. 
Workers' Compensation 

The City's workers' compensation plan is administered by Texas Municipal League's 
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML reviews and processes all workers' compensation 
claims. The City has acquired stop-loss coverage, which limits the City's possible loss to 
$250,000 per occurrence. The City informally budgets for current claims based on actuarial 
valuations and historical data. The City incurred $197,870 in workers' compensation expense 
and administrative and other charges for the year ended September 30, 2009. Estimated liability 
on claims that have been incurred but not reported are accrued at year-end. The estimated 
liability for workers' compensation claims is $98,297 at September 30, 2009. 

J. Commitments and Contingencies, Litigation, and Subsequent Events 

1. Contingencies 

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations 
of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit 
and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not 
complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received 
may be required and the collectability of any related receivable may be impaired. In the 
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opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with 
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been 
recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies. 

2. Litigation 

The City has no litigation pending which would have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 

3. Subsequent Events 

The City has evaluated subsequent events through April 27, 2010, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. On March 8, 2010 the City Council 
authorized the issuance of $4.2 million in certificates of obligation for the construction of a 
new family aquatic center. Proceeds from this debt issuance were received on April 19, 
2010. 

K. Closure and Post-closure Care Cost 

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Big Spring 
Sanitary Landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post-closure 
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City 
reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each 
period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $2,125,510 reported 
as landfill closure and post-closure care liability at September 30, 2009, represents the 
cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 70.81% percent of the estimated 
capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post- 
closure care of $876,039 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are 
based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care in 2009. The City 
expects to close the landfill in the year 2034. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes 
in technology, or changes in regulations. 

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a 
trust to finance closure and post-closure care. The City has not placed funds in a trust to cover 
these costs. However, at September 30, 2009 the City has designated an investment in the 
amount of $2,241,398 for this purpose. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



ClTY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM TREND DATA 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE RETIREMENT PLAN 
FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF THE ClTY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(UNAUDITED) 

Schedule of Funding Information 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded 
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered 

Date Assets (a) (AAL) (b) (UAAL) (b-a) Ratio (alb) Payroll (c) 

12/31/2006 $ 15,568,212 $ 19,629,226 $ 4,061,014 79.31% $ 6,155,912 
12/31/2007 16,822,225 24,459,774 7,637,549 68.78% 6,507,349 
12/31/2008 17,946,597 26,482,664 8,536,067 67.77% 7,813,766 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
[(b-a)/c] 

65.97% 
117.37% 
109.24% 
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GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Varlance with 
Fmal Budgat 

~as~tlv. 
Onginal Final Actuel (Negative) 

Revenue: 
Taxar: 

General Property Taxes 
General Sales Taxes 
Gross Receipts Business Taxes 

License and Parmitr 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fines 
Recreation 
lnvsslment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous 
COnlrib~tionO and Donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Government 
Non-Depanmental 
City Coundi 
Finance 
C$ Manager 
lnfarmet~on Technology 
Legal 
Speclel Proledr 
Human Resources 

Publlc Safety 
POllce 
Fire 
Municipal Caun 
Fire Marshal 
Anlmel Control 

ngh*afs an0 Streets 
Coae Enforcement 
General Ma nlenance 
Streets ~~~~ 

Sanitation 
Sanitation 
Landfill 
Compaol Fecility 

Recreation and Parks 
Parks 
S p r b  Complex 
Swimming P m l  
Golf Course 
Lake 
City Hall 

Debt Service: 
Princlpel 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (Deficienw) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfern In 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 

Tole1 Other Financing Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balancer 

Fund Balancer - Beginning 

Fund Balances- Ending 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

BUDGETARY DATA 

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic 
financial statements: 

a. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding 
fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them. 

b. A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. 
At least 10 days public notice of the meeting must have been given. 

c. Prior to the start of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 
resolution by the City Council. 

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of 
the City Council. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected 
in the official minutes of the City Council and are not made after fiscal year end. The legal level 
of control is at the department level. During the year, the budget was amended as necessary. All 
budget appropriations lapse at year end. 

The budget is presented on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP). 

Annual budgets were adopted for all governmental funds except the Grant fund. 



COMBINING STATEMENTS AND BUDGETARY COMPARISIONS 
AS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenue: 
Taxer 

General Pmpery Taxer 
General Sales Taxer 
Mob1 OccuPanq Taxes 

lntamavernmental ~" 
Charges b r  SeNims 
Fines 
Inverment Earnings 
Rents and Royatiles 
ConbibuSonr and Donations 

Total Rmnue 

Expendlhlms: 
Current 

General Government 
Public Safety 
HiQhwarj and S m t r  
Communiiy Service 
Recreation and Pahr 
Econmic Dewlopment 
Cemetery 

Debl Service 
Principal 
interest and Fiscal Charger 
Fiscal Nenrs  Fees 

Total Expendlures 
Excess (Dehdev) of Revenues 
Ovw (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfen In 
Transfen Out 
Capital Leases 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balancer -Be~inning 

Fund Bahnoer - Ending 

- - 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

Debt Deb1 Debt Capital Capital 
Service Sewice Service Pmjects Pmi& Permanent Total 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Nonrnajor 

Special 2 W 2  2007 2W7 2007 Cemetery Governmental 
Revenue Refllndina G.O. C.O. Capital C.O. Animal Permanent Funds (See 

Funds Sehs Bonds Bonds Replacement Shener Care Exhibl A-5) 







Revenue: 
Taxes: 

Motel Occupancy Taxes 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Economic Developemnt 
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HOTEUMOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Debt Service: 41,265 41,265 7.255 34,010 
Total Expenditures $ 446,654 $ 388,823 $ 388.165 $ 658 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 155,546 $ 158,627 $ 166.245 $ 7,618 

Other Financina Sources (Uses): 
Transfers &t (Use) ' $ (87,885) $ (96.494) $ (96.494l $ 0 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (87,865) $ (96,494) $ (96,494) $ 0 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 67,661 $ 62,133 $ 69,751 $ 7,618 

Fund Balances - Beginning 688.241 688,241 688.241 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 755.902 $ 750.374 $ 757.992 $ 7,618 



Revenue: 
Taxes: 

General Sales Taxes 
Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Economic Developemnt 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 



Revenue: 
Charges for Services 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 
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EMPLOYEE'S COLLEGE EDUCATION FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

EXHIBIT C-7 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Current 

General Government $ 32,000 $ 25.000 $ 21.649 $ 3,351 
Total Expenditures $ 32,000 $ 25.000 $ 21.649 $ 3,351 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (12.400) $ (7,040) $ (932) $ 6,108 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (12,400) $ (7,040) $ (932) $ 6,108 

Fund Balances - Beginning (12,799) (12,799) (12,799) 

Fund Balances - Ending $ (25.199) $ (19.839) $ (13.731) $ 6,108 



Revenue: 
Fines 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current 

Public Safety 
Total Expenditures 
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MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT C-8 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (under) ~ipenditures $ 300 $ 620 $ 1.834 $ 1.214 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 300 $ 620 $ 1,834 $ 1.214 

Fund Balances - Beginning 4.242 4.242 4.242 0 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 4.542 $ 4,862 $ 6.076 $ 1,214 
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Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

CORRECTIONAL CENTER FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT C-9 

Variance 
Oliginal Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Current 

Public Safety $ 3.300 $ 3,300 $ 4.580 $ (1.280) 
Total Expenditures $ 3.300 $ 3,300 $ 4,580 $ (1,280) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 121,700 $ 40.700 $ 12,400 $ (28,300) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers Out (Use) $ (110,000) $ (19.000~ $ (16,842) $ 2.158 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (110.000) $ (19.000L $ (16,842) $ 2.158 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 11,700 $ 21,700 $ (4.442) $ (26,142) 

Fund Balances - Beginning 2,548,877 2,548,877 2,548.877 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 2,560.577 $ 2,570,577 $ 2,544,435 $ (26,142) 



Revenue: 
Total Revenues 
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GOLF COURSE IMPROVEMENT FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

EXHIBIT C-10 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Total Expenditures $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Fund Balances - Beginning 87,981 87.981 87.981 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 87,981 $ 87.981 $ 87,981 $ 0 
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EXHIBIT C l l  

Revenue: 
Intergovernmental 
Investment Earnings 
Contributions and Donations 

Total Revenues 

R.S.V.P. FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Expenditures: 
Community Sewice 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In (Source) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 
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Revenue: 
General Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

NARCOTICS TASK FORCE 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT C-12 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Current 

Public Safety $ 447.408 $ 450.000 $ 446,780 $ 3,220 
Debt Service: 15.431 21.757 21.757 

Total Expenditures $ 462.839 $ 471.757 $ 468.537 $ 3,220 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ 1.411 $ 23.343 $ (3.000) $ (26,343L 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 1.411 $ 23.343 $ (3.000) $ (26,343) 

Fund Balances - Beginning 114.700 114.700 114.700 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 116,111 $ 138,043 $ 111,700 $ (26,343) 
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Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 

Total Revenues 

CEMETERY FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT C-13 

Variance 
Oliginal Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Cemetery $ 163,260 $ 213,842 $ 215,888 $ (2.046) 
Total Expenditures $ 163,260 $ 213,842 $ 215,888 $ (2.046) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (100,760) $ (148,242) $ (130,361) $ 17,881 

Other Financina Sources (Uses): - 
Transfers In $ 27.000 $ 20.050 $ 19,697 $ (3531 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 27.000 $ 20.050 $ 19.697 $ (353) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (73,760) $ (128,192) $ (110,664) $ 17,528 

Fund Balances - Beginning (161,347) (161,3471 (161.347) 

Fund Balances - Ending $ (235,107) $ (269,539) $ (272,011) $ 17,528 



Revenue: 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Contributions and Donations 

Total Revenues 
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Expenditures: 
Community Service 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

SENIOR CENTER 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending 

Original Final 
Budget Budget 

EXHIBIT C-14 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) 

$ 218,253 $ (11,747) 
53.691 1,291 

(55) (5) 
14151 0 
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EXHIBIT C-15 
2002 REFUNDING FUND 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) Actual 
Revenue: 

Taxes 
General Property Taxes 

Investment Earnings 
Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt Service: 

Principal 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Fiscal Agent's Fees 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances - Beginning 108,610 108,610 108,610 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 7,160 $ 41.910 $ 0 $ (41,910) 
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Revenue: 
Taxes 

General Properly Taxes 
investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

EXHIBIT C-16 
2007 G.O. BONDS 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Debt Service: 

Principal $ 500.000 $ 500.000 $ 500.000 $ 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 61 1.047 610.456 610.456 
Fiscal Agent's Fees 500 500 500 

Total Expenditures $ 1,111,547 $ 1.110.956 $ 1.110.956 $ 0 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ 7,183 $ 109.644 $ 137.777 $ 28,133 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 7.183 $ 109.644 $ 137.777 $ 28,133 

Fund Balances - Beginning 113.114 113.114 113.114 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 120,297 $ 222.758 $ 250.891 $ 28,133 
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Revenue: 
Taxes 

General Property Taxes 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

EXHIBIT C-17 
2007 C.O. BONDS 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Debt Service: 

Plincipal $ 15,000 $ 15.000 $ 15.000 $ 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 18,013 18.613 18.612 1 
Fiscal Agent's Fees 250 250 250 

Total Expenditures $ 33.263 $ 33,863 $ 33.862 $ 1 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ 2,137 $ 9,552 $ 8,403 $ (1.149) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 2,137 $ 9,552 $ 8,403 $ (1,149) 

Fund Balances - Beginning 4,138 4,138 4,138 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 6.275 $ 13.690 $ 12,541 $ (1.149) 



Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 

Total Revenues 
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EXHIBIT C-I 8 
CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Oliginal Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Debt Se~ ice :  

Total Expenditures $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ 60,000 $ 14,700 $ 64.099 $ 49.399 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers Out 
Transfers In 301.736 310.801 (310,801) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 301.736 $ (158.006) $ (16,450) $ 141,556 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 361,736 $ (143,306) $ 47,649 $ 190.955 

Fund Balances - Beginning 1,781,662 1,781,662 1,781.662 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 2,143,398 $ 1,638,356 $ 1,829,311 $ 190.955 



Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 
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EXHIBIT C-19 
2007 G.O. STREETS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Highways and Streets 

Distribution Lines $ 490.000 $ 995,332 $ $ 995.332 
Paved Streets 7,337,016 6.500.000 4,854,518 1,645.482 
Total Expenditures $ 7,827,016 $ 7,495,332 $ 4,854.518 $ 2,640,814 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (7,652,016) $ (7,438.332) $ (4,795,163) $ 2,643.169 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In $ $ $ (1,015,737) $ (1,015.737) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ (1.015.737) $ (1,015,737) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (7,652,016) $ (7,438,332) $ (5,810,900) $ 1,627.432 

Fund Balances - Beginning 8,385,562 8,385,562 8,385.562 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 733,546 $ 947,230 $ 2,574,662 $ 1,627,432 
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EXHIBIT C-20 

Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

2007 G.O. SPORTS COMPLEX 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Expenditures: 
Recreation and Parks . . - . - - - . 

Sports Complex $ 3,000.000 $ 3.661.983 $ 3,686.525 $ (24,542) 
Total Expenditures $ 3.000.000 $ 3,661,983 $ 3,686.525 $ (24,542) 

Excess (Deficiencvl of Revenues 
\- ~ ~ ~ ~ , ,  - 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ (2,935.000) $ (3,633,983) $ (3,660.286) $ (26,303) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In $ $ $ 31,189 $ 31.189 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 0 $ 31,189 $ 31.189 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (2,935,000) $ (3,633.983) $ (3,629,097) $ 4.886 

Fund Balances - Beginning 3,633,983 3,633.983 3,633,983 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 698.983 $ 0 $ 4.886 $ 4.886 



Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Public Safetv ~ ~~ 

Animal shelter Construction 
Total Expenditures 
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EXHIBIT C-21 
2007 C.O. ANIMAL SHELTER 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budgel Budget Actual (Negative) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (241.666) $ (215,416) $ (209.982) $ 5,434 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In $ $ 13,192 $ 7,758 $ (5,434) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0 $ 13,192 $ 7,758 $ (5,434) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (241,666) $ (202.224) $ (202,224) 5 0 

Fund Balances - Beginning 202,224 202.224 202,224 

Fund Balances - Ending 5 (39.442) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 



Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 
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CEMETERY PERMANENT CARE FUND 
PERMANENT FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

EXHIBIT C-22 

Valiance 
Original Origlnal Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

~ e b t  Service: $ $ $ $ 
Total Expenditures $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 14,000 $ 3.600 $ 3,247 $ (353) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfern out $ (14,000) $ (3.600) $ (3,247) $ 353 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (14,000) $ (3.600) $ (3.247) $ 353 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

Fund Balances - Beginning 351,511 351.511 351,511 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 351.511 $ 351,511 $ 351,511 $ 0 
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EXHIBIT C-23 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water Sales 
Sewer Charges 
Other Services 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

WATER AND SEWER FUND 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Valiance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,706,599 1,938,616 (58,462) (1,997,078) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue $ 37.200 $ 13.647 5 12.227 5 (1.420) . . - ~ ,  
Interest Expense and Paying Agent Fees (1,273.001) (1,249.424) (306,940) 942,484 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ (1,235.801) $ (1,235.777) $ (294,713) $ 941,064 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ 470.798 $ 702,839 $ (353,175) $ (1,056,014) 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 
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EXHIBIT C-24 
AlRPORTIlNDUSTRlAL PARK 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Commercial Rentals and Fees 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Expense) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Interest Revenue 
Other 
Interest Expense and Paying Agent Fees 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 

Transfers Out 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 



-78- 
CITY OF BIG SPRING, TEXAS 

EXHIBIT C-25 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Emergency Medical Services 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Operating Income (Loss) 24,852 67.190 (1 75,963) (243,153) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Intergovernmental Revenue $ 130.000 $ 130,000 $ 130.000 $ 
Other 1,500 4.525 5,503 978 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 0 
Interest Expense and Paying Agent Fees (70,548) (66,452) (7,373) 59.079 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ 60.952 $ 68,073 $ 128.130 $ 60,057 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ 85,804 $ 135,263 $ (47,833) $ (183.096) 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 
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EXHIBIT C-26 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Total 
Internal 
Service 

Funds (See 
Exhibit A-9) 

Ocwpational 
Accident 
Insurance 

Health 
Insurance 

Payroll 
Fund Garage 

Cash Flows from Operating Activnies 
Cash Received fmm lnterfund Services Pmvided 
Carn Payments lo Ernplofeer 
Casn Parmenls to S.pp ern for Gooos an0 Sem ces 

het Cash Pmv acd b, (Use3 in) Opera1 ng Act vt es 

Cash Flows fmm Capital and Related Financing Amities 
Principal and Interest Paid 

Net Cash Used in Capital end Related Financing Activities 

Cash F I m  from Investing Activities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net ."crease (Decrease) n Cash and Casn E ~ J  valenlr 
Cash an0 Carn Eq-aaents a1 Beg nn ng of Year 
Cash an0 Cash Eqdva ents at En0 of Yea 

Remndliation of operating lnwme to Nel Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating lnwme 
Adjustments to Remnciie Operating lnmme to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation 

Change in Assets and Liabilities 
InweaSB in lnterfund Receivable 
Increase in Inventories 
Increase (Decrease) in Acmunts Payable 
increase in lnterlund Payables 
Increase in Accrued Expenses 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Actlvitier 

Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Advities: 
Capital Assets Acquired Through Capital Lease 

Purchases 
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EXHIBIT C-27 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Total 
Internal 
Service 

Funds (See 
Exhibit A-81 

Occupational 
Accident 
Insurance 

Health 
Insurance Garage 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Billings to Departments and Employees 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Matelials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
lnterest Revenue 
lnterest Expense and Paying Agent Fees 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income Before Transfers 

Transfers In 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 
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EXHIBIT C 3 8  

Cash F l w s  fmm Operating Activities 
Cash Received from lnterfund Services Provided 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Cash Payments to Employees 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Cash Flaws fmm Caoital and Related Financino Activities " 
Procseds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt 
Pdnrinal and Internet Paid . .. ..7.... ~- . . ~  ~ .- 
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Aclivities 

Cash Flaws from Investing Activities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Pmvided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income lo Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Mivities 

Operaling Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Deomciation -. 7 -~ 

Change in Assets and Liabilities 
lncrease in lnterfund Remivable 
Increase in Inventories 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase in lnterfund Payables 
lncrease in Accrued Expenses 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

Total 
lntemal 

Occupational Service 
Health Accident Paymll Funds (See 

Garage Insurance Insurance Fund Exhibit A-9) 
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EXHIBIT C-29 
GARAGE FUND 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Billings to Departments and Employees 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Contractual Services 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
lnterest Revenue 
lnterest Expense and Paying Agent Fees 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income Before Transfers 

Transfers In 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 
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EXHIBIT CSO 
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARlSlON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Billings to Departments and Employees $ 1,502,000 $ 1,670,000 $ 1,548,400 $ (121,600) 

Total Operating Revenues $ 1,502,000 $ 1,670,000 $ 1,548,400 $ (121.6001 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 80,000 (25,1001 (92,948) (67,848) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue $ $ 500 $ 761 $ 261 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ 0 $ 500 $ 761 $ 261 

Income Before Transfers $ 80,000 $ (24.600) $ (92,187) $ (67.587) 

Transfers In 0 

Change in Net Assets $ 80,000 $ (24,600) $ (92,187) $ (67.587) 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 1,113,746 1,113.746 1.113.746 

Total Net Assets - Ending $ 1,193,746 $ 1,089.146 $ 1.021.559 $ (67,587) 
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EXHIBIT C-31 
OCCUPATIONAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

Variance 
Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Billings to Departments and Employees $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 0 

Total Operating Revenues $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 340,000 $ 0 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 48.500 142.360 142.130 (230) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue $ $ 210 $ 205 $ (51 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ 0 $ 210 $ 205 $ (5) 

Income Before Transfers 

Transfers In 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 





STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Big Spring's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, notes 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

CONTENTS 

Financial Trends Pages 

This segment contains information to help the reader understand how the 
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

This segment contains information to help the reader assess the City's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

This segment contains information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Economic and Demographic Information 

This segment contains demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 

Operating lnformation 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year. 






























































